Pages 2-3

Pages 4-63 7.

Pages 64-67 8.

9.

10.

INFORMATION

During "Public Comment,” please use the podium microphone. State your name, have your information prepared, and be ready to
provide your comments. The District is interested and appreciates your comments. A 3-minute time limit will be imposed. Any
person with a disability who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water District at
(760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours before the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. Materials related
to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Committee after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the

JOSHUA PASIN
ATEK DISTRICT

It’s the Water!

REGULAR FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2018, AT 9:00 AM
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA 92252

AGENDA

e

CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
DETERMINATION OF QUORUM
APPROVAL OF AGENDA
PUBLIC COMMENT

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE PRIOR COMMITTEE MEETING
e Draft Minutes — October 10, 2018

REVIEW OF FISCAL YEAR ENDING 6/30/2018 AUDIT FINANCIAL STATEMENT —
Receive report, ask questions, and recommend to the Board of Directors for acceptance.

JOB DESCRIPTION-PURCHASING & CONTRACTS TECHNICIAN — Review the job
description and refer to the Board of Directors for approval.

STAFF REPORT

ADJOURNMENT

District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during regular business hours.



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT
Minutes of the
REGULAR MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE
Wednesday, October 10, 2018
61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, CA 92252

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Vice President Johnson called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM
Directors Present —Vice President Johnson and Director Floen

STAFF PRESENT
Curt Sauer, GM, Susan Greer, AGM - Finance, Anne Roman, Accountant, Sarah Johnson, HR
Manager (present at the end of the meeting).

GUESTS -2
APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Director Floen made a motion to approve the Agenda. Vice President Johnson seconded the
motion.

MSC' (Floen/Johnson) motion carried.
PUBLIC COMMENT — None
CONSENT CALENDAR
* Approve the Draft Minutes of September 12, 2018

Director Floen made a motion to approve the draft minutes of September 12, 2018. Vice
President Johnson seconded the motion.

MSC'! (Floen/Johnson) motion carried.

REVIEW CHECK REGISTERS AUGUST-SEPTEMBER 2018- Finance Committee reviewed
the check registers from August-September 2018.

Director Floen made a motion to refer the check registers to the Board of Directors for approval.
Vice President Johnson seconded.

MSC! (Floen/Johnson) motion carried.

HOLIDAY OFFICE SCHEDULE - The Finance Committee reviewed the proposed holiday
office schedule.

Director Floen made a motion to refer the proposed holiday schedule to the Board of Directors
for approval. Vice President Johnson seconded.

MSC’ (Floen/Johnson) motion carried.

DISCUSS BILLING CYCLE AND IMPACTS OF NEW LAW, SB998- This item was tabled
until the next meeting.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 2 of 67



DISCUSS GUARANTEE DEPOSIT INCREASE — The Finance Committee reviewed the
recommended amendments to the Rules and Regulations increasing the Guarantee Deposit to
$225.00 and recommending a deposit of 150% of the standard deposit for customers cut off for
non-payment and a deposit of 200% of the standard deposit for customers that unlock meters
without authorization or damage meters.

Director Floen made a motion to refer the Guarantee Deposit Increase to the Board of Directors
for approval. Vice President Johnson seconded the motion.

MSC! (Floen/Johnson) motion carried.

ALTERNATIVE MEETING DATE FOR NEXT FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING DUE
TO THE STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOPS ON NOVEMBER 14™ AND 15™ - A
discussion followed and November 8" was suggested as an alternative date. However, the date
was not confirmed.

Vice President Johnson left the Committee meeting at 10:00 a.m. due to an emergency.

STAFF REPORT - HR Mgr. Johnson, presented the new CIRP job description to the
Committee. AGM Greer reported $12,000 in liens were recently filed for 20 locked meter
accounts and informed the Committee that Incode recently sent three representatives from Texas
to help troubleshoot and identify various issues that JBWD is having.

ADJOURNMENT - Director Floen adjourned the meeting at 10:21 a.m.

Respectfully,

Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager, and Controller

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 3 of 67



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT
MEETING AGENDA REPORT

Meeting of the Finance Committee November 8, 2018

Reportto:  Committee

Prepared by: Susan Greer

TOPIC:
REVIEW OF FISCAL YEAR ENDING 6/30/18 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

RECOMMENDATION:
Receive report, ask questions, recommend to Board of Directors for acceptance

ANALYSIS:

The audit for the year ending 6/30/18 is complete and Jonathan Abadesco, CPA and Audit Manager
with the Fedak & Brown audit firm, will be at the Finance Committee meeting to present the audit
results. Partner in the firm, Chris Brown CPA, will present the audit to the full Board on December 5.

Note, the result we are looking for, the reason for the audit, is found at the top of page two, in the
“Opinion” section, which says that the financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects.

The quick-read, big picture information is included in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section towards the front of the document, pages 3-7. The first page of that section indicates that net
position increased, and both revenues and expenses increased compared to the prior year.

The District’s audit is performed in compliance with GASB, the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board. GASB is an independent organization that establishes accounting and financial reporting
standards for US state and local governments. GASB develops and issues accounting standards
intended to promote financial reporting that provides useful information to taxpayers, public officials,
investors and others who use financial reports.

The audit requirements continue to grow, resulting in more effort for staff each year. Page 14 shows
the four new GASB standards implemented this year. Adopted but not-yet implemented GASB

standards are presented on pages 33-35, which shows new GASB compliance required of us in the
future.

Page 39-40 includes the Report on Internal Controls and Compliance. This information indicates that
the audit found no deficiency in internal controls or material weaknesses or significant deficiencies or
instances of noncompliance, although the financial audit is not designed to detect such issues.

There is a separate Management Report which is the Auditors report to the Board of Directors. The
Report discusses internal controls again and includes the adjusting journal entries. Most of the entries
relate to the very complex net pension liability associated with CalPERS. As stated in the Report, there
are legitimate reasons for adjusting entries and this is not an indication that anything is wrong.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 4 of 67



Starting at the transaction level, employees make hundreds of thousands of entries over the course of
the year to bill customers, take customer payments, deposit-funds, pay our employees; directors and
vendors, record inventory and much more. Attention to detail is continuously required and I appreciate
all of their hard work; we’ve got a great team here at the District. Beyond that, hundreds of hours of
work, much of it in the evenings and on weekends, are required from Anne Roman in order to produce
the annual financial report and undergo the Auditor’s scrutiny. Anne sets a high standard for herself
and others and the outstanding audit results are an example of her commitment. [ am fortunate to have
Anne on my Finance Team and she is an outstanding employee and role model for other employees.
It’s a privilege to work with someone of Anne’s caliber and she’s a huge asset to the District.

FISCAL IMPACT:

N/A

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 5 of 67



JOSHUA PASIN
ATER DISTKICT

Joshua Basin Water District

mﬂ

Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 6 of 67



JOSHUA PASIN
JWATEK DISTRICT

™

Joshua Basin Water District

Board of Directors as of June 30, 2018

Elected/ Current
Name Title Appointed Term
Mickey Luckman President Elected 12/16-12/20
Robert Johnson Vice President Elected 12/16-12/20
Rebecca Unger Director Elected 12/14-12/18
Tom Floen Director Elected 12/16-12/18
Geary Hund Director Elected 12/16-12/20

Joshua Basin Water District
Curt Sauer, General Manager
61750 Chollita Road
Joshua Tree, California 92252-0675
(760) 366-8438 — www.jbwd.com

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 7 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 8 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Table of Contents

Table of Contents
Financial Section

Independent Auditor’s Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:
Statements of Net Position
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Schedule of the Pension Plan Contributions

Report on Internal Controls and Compliance
Independent Auditor’s Repert on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Page No.

11-12
13-36

37
38

39-40

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 9 of 67



Financial Section

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 10 of 67



Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Joshua Tree, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Joshua Basin Water District (District),
which comprises the statements of net position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related statements
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the fiscal years then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Controlier’s Minimum Audit Requirements for
California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.,
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 11 of 67



Independent Auditor’s Report, continued

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Joshua Basin Water District as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the
respective changes in net position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 7 and the required supplementary information on pages 37 to
38 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures 1o the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during cur audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. we have also issved our report dated

on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of IlS
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance. This report can be found on pages 39 and 40.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California

(B¢

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 12 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance
of the Joshua Basin Water District (District) provides an introduction to the financial statements of the
District for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here with additional information that we have furnished in the accompanying basic
financial statements and related notes, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

* The District’s net position increased 1.99% or $739,437 to $37,854,430. [n fiscal year 2017, the
District’s net position increased 1.55% or $567,145 to $37,114,993.

s The District’s total revenues increased 9.43% or $544,946 10 $6,324,873. In fiscal year 2017, the
District’s total revenues increased 8.10% or $433,135 to $5,779,927.

e The District’s total expenses increased 7.56% or $423,696 to $6,031,292. In fiscal year 2017, the
District’s total expenses decreased 10.87% or $684,029 to $5,607,596.

Using This Financial Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements, The Statements of Net Position, Statements
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Statements of Cash Flows provide information
about the activities and performance of the District using accounting methods similar to those used by
private sector companies.

The Statements of Net Position includes all of the District’s investments in resources (assets) and deferred
outflows of resources, obligations to creditors (liabilities) and deferred inflows of resources. It also
provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the District and
assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. All of the current year’s revenue and
expenses are accounted for in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. This
statement measures the success of the District’s operations over the past year and can be used to
determine if the District has successfully recovered all of its costs through its rates and other charges. This
statement can also be used to evaluate profitability and credit worthiness. The final required financial
statement is the Statements of Cash Flows, which provides information about the District’s cash receipts
and cash payments during the reporting period. The Statements of Cash Flows reports cash receipts, cash
payments and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, non-capital financing, and capital
and related financing activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from,
what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.

Financial Analysis of the District

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or
worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the District in a way that helps
answer this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
method used by most private sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken
into account regardless of when the cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in them. You can think of the
District’s net position — the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities
plus deferred inflows of resources — as one way to measure the District’s financial health, or financial
position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are one indicator of whether its
Jinancial health is improving or deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial
factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth, zoning and new or changed
government legislation, such as changes in Federal and State water quality standards.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 13 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes 1o the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial
statements can be found on pages 13 through 36.

Statements of Net Position

Condensed Stalements ol Net Position

2018 2017 Change 2006 Change
Asscls:
Current assets $ 11.296,670 10,808.287 488,383 9,838,989 969298
Nuon-current asscls 671 404 746,104 (74610} 820,715 (74.611)
Caphal asscls, net 20.737.371 29612924 124,447 29983210 (370,286)
Total asscts 41,705,535 41.167.315 538.220 40642914 524 401
Deferred outllows of resources 477,782 416,336 31426 280,820 165,536
Linbilitics:
Current habiltics 784.266 1,003,659 {219.393) 737,748 265,871
Non-current labilitics 3.531.815 3451436 B(.379 3462074 (10.638)
Total linbilitie s 4316081 44135095 (139.014) 4,199,862 255,233
Delerred inflows of resources 12.806 43,583 (30.777) 176.004 (132441)
Net pasition:
Met mvestment in capdal asscis 26,717,030 26535924 181,106 26804210 {268,280}
Restricted 2,887,542 2,731.640 152,902 2484367 250273
Linrestexctled 8249 858 7 841429 405429 7259271 585,158
Total net position §  37.854430 37114993 739.437 36.547.848 567.143

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the District, assets plus deferred outfiows of resources of the District exceeded
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $37,854,430 and $37,114,993 as of June 30, 2018 and
2017, respectively.

Compared to prior year, net position of the District increased 1.99% or $739,437. The District’s total net
position is made up of three components: (1} net investment of capital assets, (2) restricted net position
and (2) unrestricted net position.

By far the largest portion of the District’s net position (70.58% and 71.50% as of June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively) reflects the District’s net investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) less
any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets
to provide services to customers within the District’s service area; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending.

At the end of fiscal years 2018 and 2017, the District showed a positive balance in its unrestricted net
position of $11,137,400 and $10,579,069, respectively, which may be utilized in future years. See note
14 for further information.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 14 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Condenscd Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2018 2017 Change 2066 Change
Revenue:
Operating revenue $ 5294374 4,903,804 390570 4414383 480421
Non-operalmg revenue 1030499 876,123 154376 932,409 (56.286)
Total revenue 6.324.873 5.779.927 544.946 5346792 433,135
Expensc:
Operating expense 4284,015 3,880,431 403,584 4,386,562 (506,131)
Depreciaton 1235914 1.212 568 23346 1,372,100 (159,532)
Non-operating expense 511.363 514.597 {3.234) 532963 {18.366)
Total expense 6.031.292 5,607,596 423,696 6.291.625 {684.029)
Netincome (loss) belore capital
contributions 293 581 172,331 121,250 (944.833) 1117164
Capital contributions 445.856 394814 51.042 34916 359.898
Change m net position 739437 567,145 172292 (909917} 1.477.062
Net position, beginning, of period 37.114.993 36.547.848 567.145 37457.765 (909917)
Net position, end of period $ 37854430 37.114.993 739437 36547848 567.145

Net position increased 1.99% or $739,437 to $37,854,430, as a result of ongoing operations. In fiscal year
2017, the District’s net position increased 1.55% or $567,145 to $37,114,993, as a result of ongoing
operations.

Total revenues increased 9.43% or $544,946 to $6,324,873. Operating revenues increased 7.96% or
$390,570, primarily due to increases in water consumption sales of $251,556, and water service charges
of $64,502. Non-operating revenue increased 17.62% or $154,376, primarily due to investment earnings
of $77,744 and HDMC operations revenue of $47,119. In fiscal year 2017, the District’s total revenues
increased 8.10% or $433,135 to $5,779,927. Operating revenues increased 11.09% or $489,421, primarily
due to increases in water consumption sales of $221,530 and water service charges of $213,000. Non-
operating revenues decreased 6.04% or $56,286, primarily due to a decrease in HDMC operations
revenue of $67,456.

Total expenses increased by 7.56% or $423,696 to $6,031,292. Operating expense increased 10.40% or
$403,584, primarily due to increases of $269,206 in general and administrative, and $218,108 in
transmission and distribution. Non-operating expense decreased 0.63% or $3,234. In fiscal year 2017, the
District’s total expenses decreased by 10.87% or $684,029 to $5,607,596. Operating expense decreased
11.54% or $506,131, primarily due to decreases of $642,188 in pumping, production and treatment cost,
$111,563 in transmission and distribution, which was offset by an increase of $191,779 in general and
administrative expenses. Non-operating expense decreased 3.45% or $18,366, primarily due to a decrease
of $67,120, which was offset by an increase in other operating expenses of $52,751.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 15 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Capital Asset Administration

Changes in capital asset for 2018, were as follows:

Balance Transfers/ Balance
2007 Additions Dcletions 2018
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets $ 1,401,019 1,284 857 (559,251) 2,126,025
Depreciable assets 54.032.325 640.284 (178.293) 54494316
Accumulated depreciation (25,820,420} (1.236.019) 172,869 (26.883.570)
Total capital assets, net $ 29612924 689.122 (364.675) 29.737.371
Capital Asset Administration, continued
Changes in capital asset for 2017, were as follows:
Balance Transfers/ Balance
2016 Additions Deletions 2007
Capital asscts:
Non-depreciable assets b 774,844 814,529 (188,354) 1401,019
Depreciable assets 54290614 216,107 (474.396) 54032,325
Accumulated depreciation (25.082.248) (1.212.568) 474.396 (25.820.420}
Total capital assets, net $ 29983210 i181.932) {188.354) 29.612.924

At the end of fiscal year 2018 and 2017, the District’s capital assets amounted to $29,737.371 and
29,612,924 (net of accumulated depreciation), respectively. This capital assets include land, transmission
and distribution systems, buildings, equipment, vehicles and construction-in-process. See note 9 to the

basic financial statements for further detailed information on the District’s capital assets.

Debt Administration

Changes in long-term debt for 2018, were as follows:

Balance Balance
2017 Additions Payments 2018
Long-term debt:
Bonds payable 5 3.077.000 - (107.000) 2970,000
Loans payabl: - 30341 - 50341
Tolal long-term debt 5 3.077.000 50.341 {107.000) 3.020.341
Changes in long-term debt for 2017, were as follows:
Balance Balance
2016 Additions Payments 2017
Long-term debt:
Bonds pavable N 3,179,000 - (102,000) 3,077,000
Total long-term debt 5 3,179,000 - (102,000) 3,077,000

In 2018, long-term debt decreased by $56,659, primarily due to additions to long-term debt of $50,341,
which was offset by a $107,000 decreased due to principal payments. In 2017, long term debt decreased
by $102,000, primarily due to principal payments. See further detailed information in Note 11.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 16 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position

Management is unaware of any conditions which could have a significant impact on the District’s current
financial position, net position or operating results based on past, present and future events,

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s present users, including funding sources,
customers, stakeholders and other interested parties with a general overview of the District’s finances and
to demonstrate the District’s accountability with an overview of the District’s financial operations and
financial condition. Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or
wish to request additional financial information, please contact the District’s Assistant General
Manager/Controller, Susan Greer at Joshua Basin Water District, 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree,
California, 92252 or (760) 366-8438.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 17 of 67



Basic Financial Statements

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 18 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District

Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted (note 2)
Accrued interest receivable
Accrued interest receivable - restricted
Accounts receivable — water saks and services, net (note 3)
Property taxes receivable
Special assessments receivable - restricted
Grants receivable (note 5)
Loan receivable (note 4)
Accounts receivable — other
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other deposits

Total current asscis

Non-current assets:
Note receivable — restricted (note 6)
Capital assets — not being depreciated (note 9)
Capital assets, net — being depreciated (note 9)

Total non-current assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred pension outflows (note 12)

Total deferred outflows of resources

Continued on next page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

3

2018 2017

7,539,542 7,126,952
2,112,718 1,889,950
38,568 17,209
16,360 9,100
1,061,836 1,011,156
23,433 24,190
86,970 89486
63,961 339,570

50,341 -
102,014 74,539
119,752 149,862
BI.175 76,273
11,296,670 10,808,287
671,494 746,104
2,126,625 1.401,019
27,610,746 28,211,905
30,408,865 30,359,028
41,705,535 41,167,315
477,782 446,356
471,782 446,356

Finance Committee Meeting

November 8, 2018 Page 19 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Statements of Net Position, continued

June 30,2018 and 2017
2018 2017
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 256,558 433,956
Accrued wages and related payables 50,997 38,232
Customer deposils and unearned revenue 277,253 344,438
Accrued interest payable 44,550 46,155
Long-term liabilities — due within one year:
Compensated absences (note 10) 43,908 33,878
Bonds payable (note 11) 111,000 107,000
Total current liabilitics 784,266 1.003.659
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term liabilities — due in more than one year:
Compensated absences (note 10) 131,724 101,634
Bonds payable (note 11) 2,859,000 2,970,000
Loans payable (note 1) 50,341 -
Net pension liability (note 12) 490,750 379,802
Total non-curre nt liabilities 3531815 3451436
Total liabilitics 4.316,081 4455095
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred pension inflows (note 12) 12,806 43,583
Total deferred inllows of resources 12,806 43,583
Net position: (note 14)
Net investment in capital assels 26,717,030 26,535924
Restricted 2,887,542 2,734,640
Unrestricted 8249358 7,844,420
Total net posilion $ 37854430 37114993

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 20 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Operating revenues:
Water consumption sales b 2,016,292 1,764,736
Water service charges 1,793,522 1,729,020
Standby service charges 1,251,065 1,222 964
Other charges for services 233,495 187,084
Total operating revenues 5.294.374 4,903,804
Operating expenses:
Pumping, production and treatment 1,000,951 1,132,500
Transmission and distribution 949,091 730,983
Customer service 441 444 393,625
General and administrative 1,892,529 1,623,323
Total operating cxpenscs 4284015 3,880,431
Operating income before depreciation expense 1,010,359 1,023,373
Depreciation expense (1,235914) (1.212,568)
Operating loss {225,553) (189,195)
Non-operating revenue (cxpensc):
Property taxes 441402 423,104
Special assessments for debt service 275,638 264,423
Investment earnings 133,444 55,700
Morongo Basin pipeline (note 13) (219,594) (219,898)
Interest expense (134,427) (139.205)
Debt administration charges (11,142) (10,392)
Property tax administration charge (1,104) {(1.068)
HDMC operations revenue (note 7) 180,015 132,896
HDMC project — District expense (note 7) (145,749) (132,396)
Other non-operating revenues (expenses), net 653 {11,138)
Total non-operating revenue, net 519,136 361,526
Net income before capital contributions 203,581 172,331
Capital contributions:
‘Water capacity charges 132,030 68,222
Wastewater capacity charges 36,311 5918
State capital grant 126,091 189,570
Capital contributions 145,787 99,924
Local capital grant - MWA 3,637 31,180
Total capital contributions 445 856 394,814
Change in net position 739437 567,145
Net position, beginning of period 37,114,993 36,547,848
Net position, end of period 3 37,854,430 37,114,993

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

10

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 21 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Cash flows from opcrating activities:
Cash receipts from customers for water sales and services $ 5,149,034 5,065,554
Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages (3,055,618) (2,965,306)
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services {1.278.957) (979.382)
Net cash provided by operating activities 814,459 1,120,866
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Property taxes 429913 414,599
Morongo Basin pipeline (219,594) (219.898)
Other non-operating expenses, net 653 {(11,138)
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 210972 183.563
Cash flows from capital and related financing activitics:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,360,361) (842,282)
HDMC project expense 34,266 -
Capital contributions 319,765 205,244
Payments received for note receivable 74,610 74,611
Proceeds from capital grants 401,700 -
Loan receivable from State Revolving Fund (50.341) -
Special assessments for debt service 278,154 269,960
Principal paid on debt (56,659) {102,000)
Interest paid on delxt (136,032) (140,735)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (494,898) {535.202)
Cash flows from investing activitics:
Investment earnings 104,825 43990
Net cash provided by investing activities 104,825 43,990
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 635,358 813,217
Cash and cash cquivalents, beginning of period 9,016,902 8.203.685
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period h 9,652,260 9,016,902

Reconciliation of cash and eash equivalents to the statements of net position:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,539,542 7,126,952
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 2,112,718 1,889,930
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 9,652,260 9,016,902

Continued on next page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 22 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Statements of Cash Flows, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating loss $ (225,555) (189,195)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,235914 1,212,568
Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources:
(Increase) decrease in assels and deferred outflows of resources:
Accounts receivable — water sales and services, net {50,680) 68,845
Accounts receivable — other {27475) 17,259
Materials and supplies inventory 30,110 (45,002)
Prepaid expenses and other deposits (4,902) (4,395)
Deferred outflows of resources (31,426) (165,536)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (177398) 218,325
Accrued wages and related payables 12,765 (27316)
Customer deposits and unearned revenue (67,185) 75,646
Compensated absences 40,120 (17013
Net pension Hability 110,948 109,123
Deferred inflows of resources (30,777) (132,441}
Total adjus tments 1,040,014 1,310,061
Net cash provided by operating activities 3 814,459 1,120,866

See accompanying notes 1o the basic financial statements

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 23 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policics
A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity

The Joshua Basin Water District {District) was organized in January 1963, under provisions of Division
12 of the Water Code of the State of California. The purpose of the District is to finance, consiruct,
operate and maintain a water system and wastewater system o serve properties within the District's
boundaries. The District services approximately 96 square miles in the unincorporated area of Joshua
Tree, located in the Morongo Basin of San Bernardino County. The District is governed by a Board of
Directors made up of five members elected by the qualified voters in the District.

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Statements No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity. The District is the primary
governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board that is elected by the
citizens in a general popular election. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the
clected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The District is financially
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and: 1) It is able to
impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.

The District normally conducts two monthly general meetings of the Board of Directors which are held on
the first and third Wednesdays of the month in the District’s office.

The Joshua Basin Water District Copper Mountain Mesa Assessment District (Assessment District) was
formed in 1996 to finance the improvements and construction of the potable water system facilities,
including pipelines, booster pumping station, water storage reservoir and the necessary appurtenances.
The bonds were sold to the United States Department of Agriculture, who is the sole bondholder. The
District’s directors serve as directors of the Assessment District; the District’s General Manager serves as
its executive officer. The assets and liabilities of the Assessment District are blended with those of the
District in the financial statements.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District
is that the cost of providing water to its service area on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges (water sales), capital grants and similar funding. Revenues and expenses
are recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period
in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place.

Operating revenues and expenses, such as water sales and water purchases, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which
each party receives and gives up essentially equal value. Management, administration and depreciation
expenses are also considered operating expenses. Other revenues and expenses not included in the above
categories are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. Non-operating revenues and expenses,
such as grant funding, investment income and interest expense, result from non-exchange transactions, in
which the District gives (receives) value without directly (giving) value in exchange.

C. Financial Reporting

The District’s basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as applied to enterprise funds. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

13

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 24 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

C. Financial Reporting, continued

The District solely operates as a special-purpose government which means it is only engaged in business-
type activities; accordingly, activities are reported in the District’s proprietary fund.

The District has adopted the following GASB pronouncements in the current year:
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting
and financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions
(OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about
financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities.

This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 45 — Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57 - OPEB
Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 81

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 81 — Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements. The
objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest
agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a
beneficiary of the agreement.

This Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest
agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the
agreement. Furthermore, this Statement requires that a government recognize assets representing its
beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest agreements that are administered by a third party, if the
government controls the present service capacity of the beneficial interests. This Statement requires that a
government recognize revenue when the resources become applicable to the reporting period.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 83

In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85 — Omuibus 2017. The objective of this Statement is
to address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain
GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending
component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits
(pensions and other postemployment benefits [OPEB]).

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 86

In May 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86 — Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The primary
objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-
substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary
assets acquired with only existing resources—resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt—are
placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves
accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to
financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 25 of 67



N
D.

Joshua Basin Water District

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position
1. Usc of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported changes in net position during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Substantially all of the District’s cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

3. Investments and Investment Policy

The District has adopted an investment policy as written in Article 8 of the District’s administration
code. Any surplus funds or funds held for any length of time for special projects shall only be
invested with reputable institutions.

The District’s investment policy authorizes investments in Certificates-of-deposit and the California
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The District’s investment policy does contain specific
provisions intended to limit ils exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, custodial risk, and
concentration of credit risk.

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for
that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or
losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments.

4. Fair Value Measurements

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles.

The hierarchy is based on valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. as follows:
e Level I — Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

e Level 2 — Valuation is based on directly observable and indirectly observable inputs. These
inputs are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data through
correlation or market-corroborated inputs. The concept of market-corroborated inputs
incarporates observable market data such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable
at commonly quoted intervals.

e Level 3 — Valuation is based on unobservable inputs where assumptions are made based on
factors such as prepayment rates, probability of defaults, loss severity and other assumptions
that are internally generated and cannot be observed in the market.

5. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. When management
deems customer accounts uncollectible, the District uses the allowance method for the reservation and
write-off of those accounts.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 26 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
D. Assets, Deferred Qutflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued
6. Property Taxes and Assessments

The San Bernardino County Assessor’s Office assesses all real and personal property within the
County each year. The San Bernardino County Tax Collector’s Offices bills and collects the District’s
share of property taxes and assessments. The San Bernardino County Treasurer’s Office remits
current and delinquent property tax collections to the District throughout the year. Property tax in
California is levied in accordance with Article 13A of the State Constitution at one percent (1%) of
countywide assessed valuations.

Property taxes receivable at year-end are related to property taxes collected by the San Bernardino
County which have not been credited to the District's cash balance as of June 30. The property tax
calendar is as follows:

Lien date March 1

Levy date July |

Due dates November | and March 1
Collection dates December 10 and April 10

7. Materials and Supplies Inventory

Materials and supplies inventory consists primarily of water meters, pipe and pipefittings for
construction and repair to the District’s water transmission and distribution system. Inventory is
valued at cost using the FIFO method. Inventory items are charged to expense at the time that
individual items are withdrawn from inventory or consumed.

8. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements.

9. Capital Assets

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Donated assets are recorded at estimated
fair market value at the date of donation. Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any gains or
losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows:

Transmission and distribution system — 3 to 50 years
Structures and improvements — 10 to 30 years
Vehicles and large equipment - 5 to 10 years

Office furniture and equipment — 5 to 10 years
Water rights — 25 years

Wastewater system in development — 15 years
Surveys and plans —2 to 5 years

10. Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of resources that is applicable to future
periods.

11. Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of resources that is applicable to future
periods.

16

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 27 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2018 and 217

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
D. Assets, Deferred Qutflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued
12. Compensated Absences

The District’s policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned vacation up to a total of 400 hours,
with amounts exceeding the limit being paid out as part of the employee’s regular compensation.
Upon termination of employment, employees are paid all unused vacation and forfeit any unused sick
time.

13. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions. and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and addition to/deduction
from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes. For this report. the following timeframes are used:

¢  Valuation Date: June 30, 2016
o Measurement Date: June 30, 2017
e Measurement Period: July 1, 2016 to June 30,2017

14. Net Position
The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as follows:

¢ Investment in Capital Assets — [nvestment in capital assets, net of related debt consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, and reduced by outstanding
balances of any debt, or other long-term borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.

o Restricted — Restricted consists of assets that have restrictions placed upon their use by
external constraints imposed either by creditors (debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
laws and regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through enabling
legislation.

e  Unrestricted — Unrestricted consists of the net amount of assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the
determination of the net investment in capital assets or restricted component of net position.

15. Water Sales and Services

Water sales are billed on a monthly cyclical basis and recognize the respective revenues when they
are earned.

16. Capital Contributions

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by property
owners, granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital expenditures
or capacity commitment.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 28 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued

17. Budgetary Policies

The District adopts a bi-annual non-appropriated budget for planning, control, and evaluation
purposes. Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparisons of actual revenues and
expenses with planned revenues and expenses for the period. Encombrance accounting is not used to
account for commitments related to unperformed contracts for construction and services,

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, consist of the following:

2018 2017

Cash on hand $ 2300 2,100

Deposits held with financial institutions 354,615 218,665
Deposits held with the California Local Agency Investment Fund:

Unrestricted 7,182,627 6,906,187

Restricted 2,112,718 1,889,950

Subtotal 9,295,345 8,796,137

Total cash and investments $ 9,652,260 9,016,902

As of June 30, the District’s authorized deposits had the following maturities:

2018 2017

Deposits held with the California Local Agency Investiment Fund 193 days 194 days

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in accordance with the
California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy,
where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity Of Portfolic  in One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds 3 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
State Obligations - CA and Others 5 years None None
CA Local Agency Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Obligations 5 years None None
Negotiable Certificates ol Deposit 5 years 30% None
Collateralize Bank Deposits 5 years None None
Corporate debl - Short and Long Term 3 years None None
. 40% of the

Commercial Paper - Pooled Funds 270 days District's None
Commercial Paper - Non-Pookd Funds 270 days money

Repurchase agreements | year None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None

18

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 29 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued
Investment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local District Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
the California Government Code Section 16429 and is under the management of the Treasurer of the State
of California with oversight provided by the Local Agency Investment Advisory Board, The fair value of
the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts
based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio
(in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the
accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Bank balances
are secured by the pledging of a pool of eligible securities to collateralize the District’s deposits with the
bank in accordance with the Code.

District’s deposit and withdrawal restrictions and limitations are as follows:

Same day transaction processing occurs for orders received before 10:00 a.m.

Next day transactions processing occurs for orders received after 10:00 a.m.

Maximum limit of 15 transactions (combination of deposits and withdrawals) per month.
Minimum transaction amount requirement of $5,000, in increments of $1,000 dollars.
Withdrawals of $10,000,000 or more require 24 hours advance.

e Prior to funds transfer, an authorized person must call LAIF for verbal authorization.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate
risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows
from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio matures, or comes close to maturity evenly over time, as
necessary to provide requirements for cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depaository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits, or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk
that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party.

With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in
marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in
securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).

The California Government Code and the District’'s investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure 1o custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount
deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public
deposits. Of the bank balances, up to $250,000 is federally insured and the remaining balance is
collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the collateralized securities are not held in the
District’s name.

19

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 30 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the

investment, This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District’s investment policy contains various limitations on the amounts that can be invested in any
one governmental agency or non-governmental issuer as stipulated by the California Government Code.
The District’s deposit portfolio with governmental agencies, LAIF, is 96% and 98% as of June 30, 2018
and 2017, respectively of the District’s total depository and investment portfolio. There were no
investments in any one non-governmental issuer that represent 5% or more of the District’s total
investments.

(3) Accounts Receivable — Water Sales and Services, net

The balance at June 30 consists of the following:

2018 2017
Accounts receivable — water sales $ 592,847 483,329
Unbilled water sales receivables 351,488 322,060
Standby charges receivables 298,339 358,654
Allowance for doubtful accounts (180,838) (152,887)
Total accounts receivable, net $ 1,061,836 1,018,156

(4) Loan Receivable

On December 17, 2015, the District was awarded a federal pass through grant funding from the State
Water Resources Control Board (State) in the form of Drinking Water State Revolving Fund financing.
The financing is designed to assist the District in financing the planning regarding the possible
implementation of the Chromium VI Remediation Project. The total project cost is estimated to be
$2,016,000, consisting of $1,516,000 in state revolving fund and $500,000 in grant fund (see Note 5). As
of June 30, 2018, the receivable balance from the State amounted to $50,341.

(5) Grant Receivable

The balance at June 30 consists of the following:

2018 2017
State Water Resources Control Board $ 63,961 189,570
Prop 84 IRWM Grant - 150,000
Total accounts receivable, net 5 63,961 339,570

On December 17, 2015, the District was awarded with a state pass through grant funding from the State
Water Resources Control Board (State). The State provides funding pursuant from the California Health
and Safety Code to assist the District in planning regarding the possible implementation of the Chromium
VI Remediation Project. The agreement provides for a total funding of $2,016,000, consisting of
$£500,000 in grant fund and $1,516,000 in state revolving fund (see Note 4). As of June 30, 2018 and
2017, the grant receivable balance from the State amounted to $63,961 and $189,570, respectively and is
included as part of grants receivable.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 31 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(5) Grant Receivable, continued

On March 10, 2013, Mojave Water Agency and the State of California, Department of Water Resources,
entered into a grant agreement to assist in financing projects associated with the Regional Water
Management Plan Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (IRWMP) pursuant to Chapter 8 of
Division 26.5 of the California Water Code. Funding is provided from the Safe Drinking Water, Water
Quality and Supply, Flood Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006. The grant agreement
consists of three separate IRWMP projects; for Mojave Water Agency, Joshua Basin Water District and
Hi-Desert Water District. The grant agreement provides for a total grant amount of $8,000,000. The
District used their $3,000,000 grant funding for the Recharge Project, which was completed in 2014. The
District was required to wait until all projects associated with the grant agreement were completed in
order to apply for release of retention held by the state. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the receivable
balance from DWR amounted to $0 and $150.000 respectively and is included as part of grants
receivable.

(6) Note Receivable — Hi-Desert Medical Center

On July 1, 2012, the District executed a note receivable with the Hi-Desert Medical Center for $1,119,156
for capacity charges due for sanitary sewer service to the Hi-Desert Medical Center Wastewater
Treatment Plant. The note is to be repaid over a 15-year period ($74,610 principal per year) with interest
charged at the quarterly LAIF interest earnings rate. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the note principal
balance remaining was $671,494 and $746,104, respectively. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, accrued interest
receivable on the note was $9,642 and $5.617, respectively and is included as part of the accrued interest
receivable balance in the statements of net position.

(7) Hi-Desert Medical Center Project

[n fiscal year 2013, the District was engaged by the Hi-Desert Medical Center (HDMC) to construct, own
and operate the HDMC’s Wastewater Treatment Plant (Plant). Please see note 6 for more details of the
District’s agreement with HDMC. During the construction phase, HDMC made capital contributions to
the District for the construction of the Wastewater Treatment Plant in the amount of $2,901,551. Upon
completion, it was agreed that HDMC would continue to own the Plant, while the District would be
contracted to operate and maintain the Plant. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the
District incurred $145,749 and $132,896, respectively, in reimbursable costs towards the project.

(8) Deferred Compensation Savings Plan

For the benefit of its employees, the District participates in a 457 Deferred Compensation Program
(Program). The purpose of this Program is to provide deferred compensation for public employees that
elect to participate in the Program. Generally, eligible employees may defer receipt of a portion of their
salary until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. Until the funds are paid or
otherwise made available to the employee, the employee is not obligated to report the deferred salary for
income tax purposes.

Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the
participants. Accordingly, the District is in compliance with this legislation. Therefore, these assets are
not the legal property of the District, and are not subject to claims of the District’s general creditors. At
June 30, 2018 and 2017, the market value of all plan assets held in trust by ICMA-RC was $616,393 and
$517,047, respectively.

The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intcrnal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. Since the District has little administrative
involvement and does not perform the investing function for this plan, the assets and related liabilities are
not shown on the statement of net position.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 32 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(9) Capital Assets

Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2018, were as follows:

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2017 Transfers Transfers 2018
Non-depreciable assets:
Land and fand rights b3 516,019 - - 516,019
Construction-in-process 885,000 1,284,857 (559,251) 1,610,606
Total non-depreciable assets 1401019 1,284,857 {559.251) 2,126,625
Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution system 40,861,701 182,650 - 41,044,351
Recharge facilities 9,108,029 - - 9,108,029
Structures and improvements 959,507 159,289 - 1,118,796
Vehicles and large equipment 1,360,220 91,206 {4,741) 1,446,685
Office furniture and equipment 1,115,289 159,738 (173,552) 1,101,475
Water rights - - - -
Wastewater system in development 22419 - - 22419
Studies and reports 605,160 47.401 - 652,561
Total depreciable assets 54,032,325 640,284 (178.293) 54494316
Accumulated depreciation:
Transmission and distribution mains (22,377,693) (855,176) - (23,232,869)
Recharge facilities (471,227) (182,169) - (653,396)
Structures and improvements (470,632) (28,968) - (499,600)
Vehicles and large equipment (834,855) (10,217 105 (935,967)
Office furniture and equipment (1.038,434) (21,088) 172,764 (886,758)
Watet rights - - - -
Wastewalter system in development (22,419) - - (22,419)
Studies and reports (605,160) (47401 - {652,561)
Total accumulated depreciation {25,820.420) (1,236,019} 172,869 (26,883,570)
Total depreciable assets, net 28,211,905 (595,735) (5424) 27.610,746
Total capital assets, net 5 29612924 689,122 (564,675) 29,737,371

Major depreciable capital assets additions during the fiscal year ended 2018, include upgrades and
extensions of the District’s water transmission and distribution systems of $182,650, purchases of
structures and improvements of $159,289, purchases of vehicles and large equipment of $91,206,
purchases of office furniture and equipment of $159,738, and capital improvement plans related to
surveys and plans of $47,401. During the year, the District wrote-off office furniture and equipment

amounting to $173,552 related to vehicles and large equipment, surveys and plans and office, furniture
and equipment.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 33 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(9) Capital Asscts, continued

Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2017, were as follows:

Balance Deletions/ Balance
2016 Additions/ Transfers 2017
Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights 516,019 - - 516,019
Construction-in-process 258,825 814,529 (188.354) 885,000
Total non-depreciable assels 774.844 814,529 (188.354) 1,401,019
Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution system 40,540,280 321421 - 40,861,701
Recharge facilities 9099916 8,113 - 9,108,029
Structures and improvements £99.266 60241 - 959,507
Vehicles and large equipment 1575481 69,407 (284,668} 1,360,220
Office furniture and equipment 1,136,500 20,684 (41,895 1,115,289
Water rights 263,759 (263,759 - -
Wastewater system in development 22419 - - 22419
Surveys and plans 752093 - (147 .833) 605,160
Total depreciable assets 54290614 216,107 (474.396) 54032325
Accumulated depreciation:
Transmission and distribution mains (21,285.801) (1,091,892} - (22,377,693)
Recharge facilities {289,143) (182,084) - (471,227)
Structures and improvements (443,370) {27,256) - (470,632)
Vehicles and large equipment (1,004,176) (115,347) 284,668 (834,855)
Office furniture and equipment (1,061 444) {18,885) 41,895 (1,038434)
Water rights (222,896) 222 896 - -
Waslewater system in development (22419) - - (22419
Surveys and plans {752.993) - 147,833 {605,160)
Total accumulated depreciation (25,082,248) (1,212,568) 474,396 (25,820.420)
Total depreciable assets, net 29,208,366 (996.461) - 28,211,905
Total capital assets, net $ 29983210 (181.932) {188,354) 29,612,924

Major depreciable capital assets additions during the fiscal year ended 2017, include upgrades and
extensions of the District’s water transmission and distribution systems of $321,421, purchases of
structures and improvements of $60,241, purchases of vehicles and large equipment of $69.407, and
purchases of office furniture and equipment of $20,684. During the year, the District wrote-off
discontinued projects amounting to $474,396 related to vehicles and large equipment, surveys and plans
and office, furniture and equipment.

Also, the District determined the pumping equipment of $263,759 that was classified as water rights
should be classified as part of the transmission and distribution system. As a result, depreciable assets and
related accumulated depreciation of transmission and distribution system increased by $263,759 and
$222,896, respectively.

Construction-In-Process

The District is involved in construction projects throughout the year. Once completed, projects are
capitalized and depreciated over the life of the assel.

23

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 34 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(9) Capital Assets, continued

Construction-In-Process

At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the balance of construction-in-process was $1,610,606 and $885,000,
respectively, as follows:

Construction-in-process consisted of the following projects:

Project Description 2018 2017
Chromium study $ 388,979 269,389
Well 14 Rehabilitation 1,098,448 504,876
Various other minor projects < $100,000 123,179 110,735
Total construction-in-process $ 1,610,606 885,000

(10) Compensated Absences

The changes to compensated absences for 2018, were as follows:

Balance Balance Due within Due in more
2017 Earned Taken 2018 One Year than ane year
$ 135,512 296,214 {256,094) 175,632 43,908 131,724

The changes to compensated absences for 2017, were as follows:

Balance Balance Due within Due in more
2016 Earned Taken 2017 Onc Year than one year
$ 152,527 198,683 (215,698) 135512 33.878 101,634

(11) Long-Term Dcbt

Changes in long-term debt amounts 2018 were as follows:

Balance Balance Current
2017 Additions Payments 2018 Portion
Long-term debt:
Bonds payable:
1996 Bonds $ 3,077,000 - (107.000) 2,970,000 111,000
Loans payabk::
State Revolving Fund Loan - 50,341 - 50341 -
Total long-term debt b 3077000 50,341 { 107.000) 3,020341 111.000

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2017, were as follows:

Balance Balance Current
2016 Additions Payme nts 2017 Portion
Long-term debi:
Bonds payable:
1996 Bonds 5 3.179.000 - (102.000) 3.077.000 107.000
Total long-term debt 5 3,179,000 - (102,000) 3,077.000 107,600
24

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 35 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(11) Long-Term Debt, continued
1996 Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds

In March 1996, the District authorized the issuance of $4,551,389 in Copper Mountain Mesa limited
obligation improvement bonds pursuant to the provisions of the Municipal Improvement Act of 1913. The
bonds are payable solely from and secured solely by special assessments on property parcels and the
amounts held by the District. The District is not obligated to, but may in its sole discretion, advance
available surplus funds from the District treasury. The bonds bear interest at 4.5% per annum.

Principal and interest are payable on March 2™ and September 2™ of each year as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 111,000 131,153 242153
2020 116,000 126,045 242,045
2021 121,000 120,713 241,713
2022 127,000 115,133 242133
2023 b3 132,000 109,305 241,305

2024-2028 754,000 449,729 1,203,729

2029-2033 939,000 259942 1,198,942

2034-2036 670,000 46,035 716035
Total 2,970,000 1,358,055 4,328,055

Current {111,000}

Long-term § 2,859,000

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan

On December 17, 2015, the District entered into a grant funding agreement with California State Water
Resources Control Board ("State") for a planning loan and grant under the California Water State
Revolving Fund (SRF) pursuant to Chapter 4.5, Part 12 of Division 104 of the California Health and
Safety Code (State Act) to be used for purposes of the Chromium VI Remediation Project.

The project under the funding agreement includes planning regarding the possible implementation of the
Chromium VI Remediation Project. The agreement provides for a total funding of $2,016,000. The
amount consists of State Revolving Fund (SRF) in the amount of $1.516,000 and a Grant in the amount of
$500,000. The SRF program is a federal state partnership that provides communities a permanent,
independent source of low-cost financing for a wide range of water quality infrastructure projects. The
State Revolving Fund has an interest rate of zero percent with a loan repayment term of 10 years. The
loan repayment term shall commence after all disbursements have been paid and construction of the
Project has been estimated to be completed in Fiscal Year 2020.

-
L

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 36 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(12) Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Plan Description

All qualified permanent and qualified temporary employees, even if employed through a temporary
agency, are eligible to participate in the District’s Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan, cost-sharing
multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and the
District’s resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the

pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on
the CalPERS website.

Benefits provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of
credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are
eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty
disability benefits after 10 years of service (vesting period). The death benefit range from simple return of
contributions plus interest to a monthly allowance, based upon member eligibility.

On September 12, 2012, the California Governor signed the California Public Employees' Pension
Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) into law. PEPRA took effect January 1, 2013. The new legislation closed
the District’s CalPERS 2.0% at 55 Risk Pool Retirement Plan to new employee entrants cffective
December 31, 2013. All employees hired after January 1, 2013, are eligible for the District’s CalPERS
2.0% at 62 Retirement Plan under PEPRA.

The Plans’ provision and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018 are summarized as follows:

Miscellancous Risk Pool

Classic PEPRA
Prior to On or after
January |, January |,
Hire date 2013 2013
Benefit formula 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life  monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 52-067
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible
compensation 2.0% to 2.5% 1.0% 10 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 6.500%
Required employer contribution rates 9.599% 6.908%

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be
effective on July 1, following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is
the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

26

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 37 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(12) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued
Contributions, continned

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the contributtons recognized as part of pension
expense for the Plan was as follows:

2018 2017
Contributions — employer $ 137,342 121,564

Net Pension Liability

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of
the net pension liability of the Plan as follows:

2018 2017

Proportionate share of net pension liability $ 490,750 379,802

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 (the measurement
dates), and the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 (the valuation dates), rolled forward to
June 30, 2017 and 2016, using standard update procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.

The District’s proportionate share of the pension liability for the Plan as of the measurement date June 30,
2017 and 2016, were as follows:

Miscellancous
Proportion — June 30, 2015 0.00394%
Increase in proportion 0.00045%
Proportion — June 30, 2016 0.00439%
Increase in proportion 0.00056%
Proportion — June 30, 2017 0.00495%

Deferred Pension Outflows (Inflows) of Resources

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the District recognized pension expense (credit) of
$48,745 and $(188,854), respectively.

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, employer pension contributions reported as deferred outflows of resources
related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $159,828 and $137,342 will be recognized
as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 38 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(12) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Deferred Pension Qutflows (Inflows) of Resources, continued

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

2018 2017
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Description Resources Resources Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 5 159,828 - 137,342 -
Differences between actual and
expected experience - (12,806) 3,551 -
Changes in assumptions 110,140 - - (43,583}
Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments 26,965 - 226,837 -
Differences between actual contribution
and proportionate share of contribution 45,640 - 8413 -
Net adjustment due to differences in
proportions of net pension hiability 135,209 - 70213
Total 3 477,782 (12,806) 446,356 (43,583)

At June 30, 2018, the District recognized other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending
June 30,

Deferred Net

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Remaining

Outflows/(Inflows)
of Resources
$ 119,296
134,622
102,412
(38,576)
28

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 39 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
{12) Decfined Bencefit Pension Plan, continued

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities were determined as of June 30, 2015, which were rolled forward to June 30,
2017, using the following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2016 and 2015
Measurement Date June 30, 2017 and 2016
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of

GASB Statement No. 68

Discount rate 7.15% and 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Period upon which actuarial
experience survey assumplions
were based 1997 - 2011
Post retirement benefit increase Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power
Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies,
2.75% thereafter

* The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data. The table includes 20 years of

mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table, please refer

to the 2014 Experience Study report (based on CalPERS demographic data from 1997 to 2011) available
online at https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs /forms-publications/calpers-experience-study-2014.pdf.

Disconunt Rate

The discount rates used in the actuarial valuations to measure the total pension liability as of June 30,
2017, reflect the long-term expected rates of return. The discount rates used to measure the total pension
liability as of June 30, 2017, was 7.15%. These differ from the discount rates used as of June 30, 2016,
which was 7.65%, due to a decrease in the long-term expecied rate of return. The financial reporting
discount rates are not adjusted for administrative expenses and are consistent with the funding discount
rates at the end of the three-year funding discount rate phase-in period.

To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of the discount rate, the
amortization and smoothing periods adopted by CalPERS in 2013 were used. The crossover test was
performed for a miscellaneous agent plan and a safety agent plan selected as being more at risk of failing
the crossover test and resulting in a discount rate that would be different from the long-term expected rate
of return on pension investments.

Based on the testing of the plans, the tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability for the PERF C.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 40 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(12) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued
Discount Rate, continued

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected compound {geometric) returns were calculated over the
short term (first 10 years) and the long term 11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the
expected nominal returns for both short term and long term, the present value of benefits was calculated
for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected
return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both
short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent
rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

The tables below reflect the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation.

As of June 30, 2018, the target allocation and the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class
were as follows:

New

Strategic Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10* Year 11+%+
Global Equity 47.0% 4.90% 5.38%
Global Fixed Income 19.0% 0.80% 2.27%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.60% 1.39%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 3.90% 5.36%
Liquidity 2.0% -0.40% -0.90%

Total 100.0%

As of June 30, 2017, the target allocation and the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class
were as follows:

New
Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10* Year 11+**
Global Equity 51.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 20.0% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 1.0% -0.55% -1.05%
Total 100.0%
30

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 41 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(12) Defined Bencefit Pension Plan, continued
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following table presents the District’s proportionate share of the net position liability for the Plan,
calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the District’s proportional share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one
percentage point higher than the current rate.

As of June 30, 2018, the District’s net pension liability at the current discount rate, using a discount rate
that is one-percentage point lower, and using a discount rate that is one-percentage point higher, are as
follows:

Current
Discount Discount Discount
Rate - 1% Rate Rate + 1%
6.15% 7.15% 8.65%
District’s Net Pension Liability $ 782,465 490,750 269,621

As of June 30, 2017, the District’s net pension liability at the current discount rate, using a discount rate
that is one-percentage point lower, and using a discount rate that is one-percentage point higher, are as
follows:

Current
Discount Discount Discount
Rate - 1% Rate Rate + 1%
6.65% 7.65% 8.65%
District's Net Pension Liability $ 536,161 379,802 185,444

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in separately issued
CalPERS financial reports. See pages 37 through 38 for the Required Supplementary Schedules.

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the District reported no payables for the outstanding amount of contribution
to the pension plan.

(13) Morongo Basin Pipcline Project

During the year ended June 30, 1991, the District executed an Agreement for construction, operation and
financing of the Morongo Basin Pipeline project with the Mojave Water Agency (Agency). Pursuant to
this Agreement, the Agency has constructed a pipeline to supply, on a wholesale basis, certain areas of
San Bemardino County, including the Joshua Basin Water District, with water from the State Water
Project. Voters within the area to be served by the pipeline project approved the issuance of
$66,500,000 principal amount of general obligation bonds to finance the pipeline project. This resulted
in the formation of Improvement District M of the Mojave Water Agency. In the Agreement, the
District has agreed to make certain payments to the Agency to cover the District's share of fixed project
costs, including debt service. The District makes annual payments under the Agreement for Improvement
District M's general obligation bond sales of $12,000,000 principal amount in May 1991 (Series A) and
$40,735,000 principal amount in 1993 (Series B).

il

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 42 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(13) Morongo Basin Pipeline Project, continued

The District is obligated to pay 27% of the debt service on Improvement District M's general obligation
bonds. Improvement District M bonds are general obligations of the Mojave Water Agency and are
secured by and payable from the taxes levied upon the taxable property in Improvement District M. As
part of the agreement, approximately 70% of the debt service will be derived from the levy of taxes on
properties within Improvement District M, and 30% of the debt service on the bonds will be derived from
payments to be made by the Mojave Water Agency participants.

In April 1996, $50,485,000 of the Improvement District Bonds was refinanced with $51,780,000
Improvement District M of the Mojave Water Agency General Obligation Bonds (Morongo Basin
Pipeline Project) election of 1990, refunding Series of 1996. Interest rates range from 3.75% to 5.80%.

Payments of fixed project costs to the Agency have been classified as non-operating expenses in the
amount of $219,594 and $219,898 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

(14) Net Position

Calculation of net position as of June 30, were as follows:

2018 2017
Net Investment in capital assets, net of related debt:
Capital assets, not being depreciated i 2,126,625 1,401,019
Depreciable capital assets, net 27,610,746 28,211,905
Current:
Bonds payable (111,000) (107,000)
Non-current;
Bonds payable (2,859,000) (2,970,000)
Loans payable {50,341) -
Total net investment in capital assets 26,717,030 26,535,924
Restricted net position:
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 2,112,718 1,889,950
Accrued interest receivable - restricted 16,360 9,100
Special assessments receivable - restricted 86,970 89,486
Note receivable — Hi-Desert Medical Center, restricted 671,494 746,104
Total restricted net position 2,887,542 2,734,640
Unrestricted net position:
Non-s pendable net position:
Materials and supplies inventory 119,752 149,862
Prepaid expenses and other deposits 81,175 76,273
Total non-spendable net position 200,927 226,135
Spendable net assets are designated as follows:
Designated 4,644,315 3,701,050
Unrestricted 3,404,616 3,917,244
Total spendable net position 8,048,931 7,618,294
Total unrestricted net position 8,249,858 7,844,429
Total net position 37,854,430 37,114,993

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 43 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(15) Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of the
Association of California Water Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/IPIA), an
intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers authority created to provide self-insurance programs for
California water agencies. The purpose of the ACWA/JPIA is to arrange and administer programs of self-
insured losses and to purchase excess insurance coverage.

At June 30, 2018, the District participated in the liability, property and worker’ compensation programs of
the ACWA/IPIA as follows:

e General and auto liability, public officials and employees’ errors and omissions: Total risk
financing self-insurance limits of $5,000,000, combined single limit at $5,000,000 per
occurrence. The JPIA purchases additional excess coverage layers up to $60 million per
occurrence total for general, auto and public officials liability, which increases the limits on the
insurance coverage noted above.

In addition to the above, the District also has the lfollowing insurance coverage:

e Employee dishonesty coverage up to $250,000 per loss includes public employee dishonesty,
forgery or alteration and computer fraud subject to a $1,000 deductible per loss.

Property loss, including boiler and machinery coverage is paid at the replacement cost for buildings, fixed
equipment and personal property on file of $18.621,226 subject to a $2,500 deductible per
occurrence. Repairs or replacement must be completed within two years; otherwise loss is valued
on an actual cash value basis. Mobile equipment and vehicles are valued based on actual cash value
at time of loss, subject to a $1,000 deductible per occurrence. ACWA JPIA has purchased excess
coverage up to $150 million.

* Workers’ compensation insurance up to California statutory limits for all work related
injuries/illnesses covered by California law. The ACWA/IPIA is self-insured up to $2,000,000
and excess insurance coverage has been purchased.

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years and
there were no reductions in the District’s insurance coverage during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018,
2017 and 2016. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount
of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the respective insurance coverage. Liabilities include an
amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). There was no IBNR claims payable
as of June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016.

(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to June
30. 2018, that has effective dates that may impact future financial presentations.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 83

In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83 — Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. This
Statement (1) addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations
(AROs), (2) establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a
corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs, (3) requires that recognition occur when the
liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable, (4) requires the measurement of an ARO to be based
on the best estimate of the current value of outlays expected to be incurred, (5) requires the current value
of a government’s AROs to be adjusted for the effects of general infiation or deflation at least annually,
and (6) requires disclosure of information about the nature of a government’s AROs, the methods and

33

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 44 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

assumptions used for the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the
associated tangible capital assets.

(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 83, continued

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84 — Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included
to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities.

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other
employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3} private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial
funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent
arrangement that meets specific criteria.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018,
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87 — Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting
for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 88

In April 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 88 — Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including
Direct Borrowings and Direct Plucements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the
information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct
borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when
disclosing information related 1o debt.

This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financia! statements as a liability that
arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one or
more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established.

34

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 45 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 88, continued

This Stalemenl requires (hat additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to
financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt: and terms
specified in debl agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences,
significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration
clauses.

For noles to financial statements related to debt, this Statement also requires that existing and additional
information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debi separately from other debt.

The requirements of this Statement arc effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018,
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89 — dccounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End
of a Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2)
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.

This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in
accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting
and  Financial  Reporting Guidance Contained in - Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and  AICPA
Pronouncements, which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the
cost is incurred for NMnancial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a
result. interest cost incurred before the end ol a construction period will not be included in the historical
cost ol a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund.

This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current (inancial resources
measurement locus, interest cost incurred before the end ol a construction period should be recognized as
an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 13, 2019.
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements of this Statement should be applied prospectively.

(17) Commitments and Contingencies

Grant Awards

Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such audit could lead to
requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.
Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant.

Construction Contracts

The District has a variety of agreements with private parties relating to the installation, improvement or
modification of water and wastewater facilities and distribution systems within its service area, The
financing of such construction contracts is being provided primarily from the District’s replacement
reserves and capital contributions.

35

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 46 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2617

(17) Commitments and Contingencies, continued
Litigation

In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties.
After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any,
will not materially affect its financial condition.

(18) Subsequent Events

Events occurring after June 30, 2018, have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial

statements or disclosure as of , which is the date the financial statements were available
to be issued.

In September 1, 2018, the District entered into a Project Fund Agreement with Municipal Finance
Corporation (Corporation) and U.S. Bank National Association (Custodian) in reference to the Installment
Sale Agreement (Agreement) between the Corporation and the District. The agreement requires that the
funds for the acquisition and construction of the Joshua Basin Water District Project Fund (Project Fund)
in the amount of $3,010,000 be deposited with the Custodian to pay for the construction, acquisition, and

improvements to its water system pursuant to the California County Water District Law (Division 12 of
the Water Code of the State of California).

36

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 47 of 67



<Page Intentionally Left Blank>

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 48 of 67



Required Supplementary Information

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 49 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
As of June 30, 2018
Last Ten Years*

Measurement Dates

6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2015
District's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.00495% 0.00439% (.00394% 0.00463%
District's Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability b 490,750 379,802 270,679 288,403

District's Covered-Employee Payroll $ 1,462,157 1,344,686 1,384,706 1,385,362
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a Percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll 33.56% 28.24% 19.55% 20.82%
Plan's Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of

the Plan's Total Pension Liability 82.83% 83.60% 87.09% 83.03%
Plan's Proportionate Share of Aggregate

Employer Contributions £9.544 72,122 63,158 38,155

Notes to the Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

Changes in Benefit Terms — The District can make changes to their plan provisions, and such changes occur on an ongoing basis. A summary of
the plan provisions that were used for the District’s plan can be found in the plan’s annual valuation report.

Changes of Assumptions — In fiscal year 2018, the financial reporting discount rate was lowered from 7.65% to 7.15%. [n December 2016, the
CalPERS Board approved lowering the funding discount rate used from 7.50% to 7.00%, which is to be phased-in over a three-year period (7.30%
to 7.375%, 7.375% to 7.25%, and 7.25% to 7.00%) beginning with the June 30, 2016, valuation reports. The funding discount rate includes a 15
basis-point reduction for administrative expenses, and the remaining decrease is consistent with the change in the financial reporting discount rate.

* The District has presented information for those years for which information is available until a full 10- year trend is compiled.

37
Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 50 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions
As of June 30, 2018
Last Ten Years*

Measure ment Dates

Description 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014

Actuarially Determined Contribution 3 144,890 145219 143,957 138973
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined
Contribution (137.342) (121.564) {146,314} {138.973)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) h 7.548 23,655 (2.357) -
Covered Payroll 5 1.462,157 1,344,686 1,384,706 1,385,362
Contributions as a percentage of

Covered-Employee Payroll 9.91% 10.80% 10.40% 10.03%

Notes to the Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions

* The District has presented information for those years for which information is available until a full 10- year trend is compiled.

3%

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 51 of 67



Report on Internal Controls and Compliance

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 52 of 67



Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based en an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Joshua Tree, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Joshua Basin
Water District (District) as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprises the District’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

39

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 53 of 67



Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Gevernment Auditing Standards, (continued)

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress. California

40

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 54 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Management Report

June 30, 2018

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 55 of 67



Joshua Basin Water District
Management Report

Table of Contents

ltem
General Introduction
Summary of Current Year Comments and Recommendations
Status of Comments and Recommendations Made in the Previous Year
Appendix:

Audit/Finance Committee Letter

Schedule of Adjusting Journal Entries

Page No.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 56 of 67



CONFIDENTIAL

Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Joshua Tree, California

Dear Members of the Board:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Joshua Basin Water District (District)
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, we considered internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited period described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weakness. Given these limitations during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Our comments, all of which have been discussed with the appropriate members of management, are
summarized as follows:

Summary of Current Year Comments and Recommendations
Disclosure of Audit Adjustments and Reclassifications

As your external auditor, we assume that the books and records of the District are properly adjusted
before the start of the audit. In many cases, however, audit adjustments and reclassifications are made in
the normal course of the audit process to present the District’s financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or for comparison purposes with
the prior year. For the Board of Directors to gain a full and complete understanding and appreciation of
the scope and extent of the audit process we have presented these audit adjustments and reclassifications
as an attachment to this letter. There can be very reasonable explanations for situations of having
numerous adjustments as well as having no adjustments at all. However, the issue is simply disclosure of
the adjustments and reclassifications that were made and to provide the Board of Directors with a better
understanding of the scope of the audit.

Management’s Response

The District has reviewed and approved all of the audit adjustment and reclassification entries provided
by the auditor and have entered those entries into the District’s accounting system.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 57 of 67



Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Page 2

Summary of Comments and Recommendations Made in the Previous Year
Disclosure of Audit Adjustments and Reclassifications

As your external auditor, we assume that the books and records of the District are properly adjusted
before the start of the audit. [n many cases, however, audit adjustments and reclassifications are made in
the normal course of the audit process to present the District’s financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or for comparison purposes with
the prior year. For the Board of Directors to gain a full and complete understanding and appreciation of
the scope and extent of the audit process we have presented these audit adjustments and reclassifications
as an attachment to this letter. There can be very reasonable explanations for situations of having
numerous adjustments as well as having no adjustments at all. However, the issue is simply disclosure of
the adjustments and reclassifications that were made and to provide the Board of Directors with a better
understanding of the scope of the audit.

Management’s Response

The District has reviewed and approved all of the audit adjustment and reclassification entries provided
by the auditor and have entered those entries into the District’s accounting system.

® ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok %

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management and the Board of
Directors of the District. This restriction is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

We appreciate the courtesy and cooperation extended to us during our examination. We would be pleased
to discuss the contents of this letter with you at your convenience. Please do not liesitate fo contact us.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 58 of 67



APPENDIX
Joshua Basin Water District
Audit/Finance Committee Letter

June 30, 2018

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 59 of 67



Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Joshua Tree, California

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Joshua Basin Water District (District) for the year
ended June 30, 2018 and have issued our report thereon dated . Generally accepted
auditing standards require that we provide the Governing Board and management with the following
information related to our audit of the District’s basic financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibility under United States Generally Accepted Aunditing Standards

As stated in our Audit Engagement Letter dated March 22, 2018, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the basic financial statements prepared by
management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with United
States generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you
or management of its responsibilities.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Governmental Auditing Standards.

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are
not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and liming requirements as previously
communicated to management. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the
following information related to our audit.

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the basic financial statements.

We noted no transactions entered into by the District during fiscal year 2018 for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 60 of 67



Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Page 2

Management’s Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Financial Disclosures

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the basic financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
the basic financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the position in the basic
financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the fair value of cash and cash equivalents is based on information
provided by financial institutions. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
fair value of cash and investments in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the allowance for delinquent/doubtful accounts is based on historical
write-offs of past due delinquent/doubtful customer accounts, customer creditworthiness, and
calculated assumptions of expected future write-offs. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions
used to develop the allowance for delinquent/doubtful accounts in determining that it is reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of capital assets depreciation is based on historical estimates of each
capitalized item’s useful life expectancy or cost recovery period. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the capital asset depreciation calculations in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the defined benefit pension plan’s deferred outflows of resources, net
pension liability, and deferred inflows of resources are based on an actuarial evaluation of these
amoumnts which was conducted by a third-party actuary. We evaluvated the basis, actuarial methods and
assumptions used by the actuary to calculate these amounts for the District to determine that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain basic financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the basic financial statements are:

The disclosure of fair value of cash and cash equivalents in Note 2 to the basic financial statements
represents amounts susceptible to market fluctuations.

The disclosure of the District’s allowance for delinquent/doubtful accounts in Note 3 to the basic
financial statements represents amounts susceptible to external factors the District has no control
over, such as, the state of the economy in the District’s service area.

The disclosure of capital assets, net in Note 9 to the basic financial statements is based on historical
information which could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item.

The disclosure of the District’s defined benefit pension plan in Note 12 to the basic financial
statements is based on actuarial assumptions which could differ from actual costs.

The disclosures in the basic financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit,

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional Standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, except those that are considered trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. (See Page 4)

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 61 of 67



Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Page 3

Disagreements with Management

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction that could be
significant to the basic financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit of the District.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the Management
Representational Letter to the Auditor dated

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion™ on certain situations. If a consultation involves the
application of an accounting principle to the District’s basic financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditor. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

Restriction on Use

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than the specified, parties. This restriction is
not intended to limit the distribution of this letter, which is a matter of public record.

Conclusion

We appreciate the cooperation extended us by Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller, and
Anne Roman, Accountant, in the performance of our audit testwork.

We will be pleased to respond to any questions you have about the foregoing. We appreciate the
opportunity to continue to be of service to the District.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 62 of 67



Board of Directors
Joshua Basin Water District
Page 4

Joshua Basin Water District
Schedule of Adjusting Journal Entries
June 30, 2018

Adjusting Journal Entries JE No. 1
To reclassify 2017 contributions to NPL at June 30, 2018,
200-22360 NET PENSION LIABILITY § 137,342.00
100-13600 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 137,342.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE No. 2
To reclassify 2018 contributions to Deferred Qutflows of Resources at June 30,
2018.
100-13600 DEFERRED OQUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES 159,828.00
551-01230 RETIREMENT: PERS Classic 2%/d@'55 159,828.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE No. 3
To record changes in pension liability during FY [6/17 at June 30. 2018.

100-13600 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 175.129.00
200-23050 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCLES 47.134.00
551-01230 RETIREMENT: PERS Classic 2%id'55 92,062.00
100-13600 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 47.134.00
200-22360 NET PENSION LIABILITY 248,290.00
200-23050 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 18,501.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE No. 4

To record changes in the deferred outfllows and deferred inflows (amortization)
during FY17/18 at June 30, 2018.

200-23050 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 4,974.00
551-01230 RETIREMENT: PERS Classic 2%'55 116,511.00
100-13600 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 58,205.00
100-13600 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 60,850.00
200-23050 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2.430.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE Ne. 5
To reverse accrued payroll taxes as of June 30, 2017,

200-22300 ACCRUED PAYROLL TAX PAYABLE 7,061.94

551-01230 RETIREMENT: PERS Classic 2%a'55 2,796.34
551-01231 RETIREMENT: PERS Tier 2 2%«62 2,027.48
551-01305 PAYROLL TAXES 2,238.12

Adjusting Journal Entries JE No. 6
To reverse entry made on a disposed asset to ils proper account as of June 30,

2018,
100-13400 OFFICE FURNITURE/EQUIPMENT 6,795.12
100-15401 OFFICE FURN/EQUIP-ACCUM DEPREC 6,795.12

Adjusting Journal Entries JE No. 7
To adjust prepaid expense accounts to its proper balances as of June 30, 2018.

100-12325 PREPAID COMP SUPPORT & LICENSE 1,315.29
504-07401 PROPERTY INSURANCE 287.91
100-12320 PREPAID PROPERTY INSURANCE 287.91
553-040135 COMPUTER SOFTWARLE & SUPPORT $ 1,315.29

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 63 of 67



JOBD IPTI
mwﬂug 5?& OB DESCR ON

I 451 e pygere
5_ POSITION Purchasing & Contracts Technician CLASS/GROUP AFE ME
| SALARY RANGE | Range 24 SAFETY SENSITIVE | No
HOURS — FT/PT | Full Time ESTABLISHED DATE | TBD
FLSA STATUS Non-Exempt REVISION DATE

| SUMMARY ; |

The Purchasing and Contracting Techri'cian 1s responsible for assisting, planning, orgamzmg and carrying-out the
purchasing, contract administrat on, vendor management, and inventory control activities in support of the
operation of the D'strict. All activities are conducted i n compl ance with applicable federal, state and/or local
regulations and D strict policy.

| DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTIC il R

This position 1s a journey level pod'tion and 1s dist ngd shed by the need for analytical ability, familiarity with local,
State and Federal prd urement guidel'nes; and the abl hity to work W|th minimal supervision and direction.

| SUPERVISION RECEIVED/EXERCISED . __J

This posmon rece ves general superv'sion from the department head, manager, or supervisor, as assigned. No
supervision of others's exercised. This position 1s expected to participate In the sharing of expert knowledge and
as a V tal member of various prd ect teams. B

|_EXAMPLES OF DUTIES : |

Job Descriptions are only intended to present a description summary of the range of duties and responsibilities associated with
specified position. Therefore, job descriptions may not include all duties performed by individuals within the position. The omission of

specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to this
closs.

Essential Functions:

e Act’s as the D strict’s repre€ ntati ve to communicate and/or coordinate all purchasing procurement,
contract, and inventory ré ated matters

e Administers and coord nates all facets of Distd ct’s purchasing program, ind udlng but not imited to
purchase requ sitions, purchase order documents, contract agreements, serJ ce agreements, change
orders, task orders, and other forms of commitment

e Reviews purchasing dd& uments for completeness, accuracy, and compliance with policy and procedures

s Maintains the Districts purchase requisiton and order system, eligible vendor iist, contractual records,
project files, all contract correspondence, contractud changes, status reports, and other related
documents.

e Solicits sources of supply, andyze® prices, delivery dates, previous performance, current comm tments,
and indications of finand d responsibility, and recommends the most advantageous vendor.

e Assists with the development and writing of contract specifications, bid documents, request for
proposals, and related documents.

e  Assists with evaluation and analyses of B ds and proposals, and makes recommendations for alternate
procurements (e g. emergency, sole source and competition impracticable}

e Negotiate contract terms and conditions, issue annud Blanket Purchase Orders, Master Purchad'ng
Agreements, and Annual Service Agreements

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 64 of 67



* Monitors contracts progress to ensure compliance by interpreting and evaluating contract provisions;
makes recommendations for corrective action resulting from vendor inaction or deficiencies; prepares
change orders; ensures contract close-out, extension or renewal; and regularly communicates contract
status to affected departments.

e Reconciles invoices; resolves invoice, delivery/shipment, and payment dispute discrepancies; and
submits invoices in a timely manner for payment processing.

* Oversees and maintains prevailing wage and certified payroll compliance.

¢ Maintains, monitors, and ensures vendor accounts are in order by identifying vendor type, issuance and
collection of W9's, DE 542 reporting, license verification, insurance compliance, and other vendor
approval duties.

* Maintains the certificate of insurance management program and ensures all vendor insurance is in
compliance with District Insurance requirements.

e Coordinates with Project Managers to direct vendor activity according to vendor compliance status (i.e.
notice to proceed, stop work, etc.).

* Establishes and maintains an inventory control system for materials, supplies, and parts required for the
efficient operation of the District.

* Maintains perpetual inventory records and compares to inventory on hand; coordinates reorder points;
reports periodic usage.

* Administers the District’s fixed asset system with tracking/controlling of fixed assets by assigning
physical asset tags, conducting periodic counts of fixed assets and valuation reviews, and arranging for
disposal options for obsolete items, and assisting with fixed asset audits.

» Prepares regular reports or correspondence on the status of contracts, vendors, vendor insurance,
inventory, or other related reports.

» Assists and/or presents purchasing, contracting, and procurement related staff training.

» Interprets policy and procedures, assist with the development and implementation of new policies and
procedures regarding procurement, contracts, and related purchasing processes.

o Demonstrates continuous effort to improve operations, decrease turnaround times, streamline work
process and work cooperatively and jointly to provide seamless customer service.

e Establishes and maintains cooperative working relationships with staff, vendors, outside agencies, and
the public.

| MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS ]
The following are representative of the qualifications necessary to perform the essential duties of the position.

Any combination of education and experience which would likely provide the necessary knowledge and abilities
may be qualifying.

Experience:

¢ Minimum of three (3) years of increasingly responsible experience in procurement, purchasing, and/or
contract management.

o Public agency experience highly desired.

Education and/or Training:

* High School Diploma or equivalent.

» Bachelor's Degree from an accredited educational institution in business or public administration,
accounting, finance, or closely related field highly desired.

Certificates, Licenses, Registration:

* AdCertificate related to acquisitions such as a Certified Associate Contracts Manager, Certified Professional
Contracts Manager, Certified Purchasing Manager or Certified Public Purchasing Officer from a nationally
recognized organization such as the National Contract Management Association or Universal Purchasing
Certification Council highly desired.

Other: Must possess and maintain valid California Class C Driver’s License.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 65 of 67 2



I PERFORMANCE EXPECTATIONS: KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES

The following are representative examples of K5A's necessary to perform the essential duties of the position.
Knowledge of:

Practices, theories, and principles related to procurement;

Contract administration policies and procedures for informal and formal bids and negotiated contracts;
Certificate of Insurance monitoring and tracking;

Prevailing wage requirements and certified payroll compliance;

Procurement and contracting law;

Utilization of purchasing documents and processing techniques;

Inventory Control and purchasing practices;

Computers, software, and office equipment operation; and

Microsoft Office Products such as Word, Excel, PowerPoint, and Outlook.

Effectively use verbal and written communication;

Managing and executing multiple tasks and meeting deadlines;

Possessing strong organizational skills;

Writing and drafting technical documents and professional correspondence; and

Interacting, establishing and maintaining effective professional, working relationships with District staff
and the public.

Ability to:

Evaluate and analyze information to formulate recommendations;

Prepare clear and concise reports and establish and oversee monitoring systems for tracking
information;

File alphabetically and numerically; maintain accurate records; retain and recall infermation, and to
proofread for accuracy;

Adjust to changes in workload and deadlines, and work under pressure of meeting deadlines;
Exercise independent judgment within given framework or defined parameters;

Exercise initiative to obtain information necessary to respond to internal/external requests;

Read, understand, and carryout written and verbal instructions;,

Write clearly using correct grammar, spelling, and punctuation;

Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing;

Work efficiently in teams and independently, while being productive when completing work tasks;

To proficiently use Windows and Microsoft Office Products such as Word, Excel, PowerPoint, and
Outlook;

Represent the District in a professional manner and; establish and maintain cooperative, respectful, and
effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work including staff, officials,
vendors, and the public.

Ability to type 45 wpm.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 66 of 67

3



| PHYSICAL AND MENTAL DEMANDS ]

The physical and mental demands described here are representative of those that must be met by employees to successfully perform

the essential functions of this class. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

Physical Demands: Subject to reasonable accommodation in accordance with the requirements of the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the California Fair Employment and Housing Act {FEHA), possess the
ability to lift and/or carry objects {no greater than 35 Ibs.} on a frequent basis. Ability to bend, twist, turn, push,
pull and reach routinely, as well as perform repetitive motion tasks on a regular basis. Ability to stand, walk, and
climb on a regular basis. Ability to sit for extended time periods and use office equipment such as computer
terminals, copiers, and fax machines on a regular basis. Ability to stoop, kneel, and crouch on a frequent basis.
Requires normal range hearing and vision.

Work Environment:

e Qutside: The duties of this position require frequent work in an outdoor and shop/warehouse setting.

¢ Inside: The administrative duties of this position are primarily conducted indoors, in an office or
shop/warehouse setting or environment.

* Fumes/Gasses: On occasion, the duties of this position require work in an environment with exposure to
dust, dirt, fumes, and vapors.

* Noise/Vibration: Noise levels expected of an office or indoor setting are expected. Noise levels in an
outdoor or shop/warehouse setting from machinery or heavy equipment are expected.

Equipment Use: Standard office equipment such as computer hardware and peripherals, binding machines,
copy machines, scanning machines, fax machines, and telephone.

Mental Demands: While performing the duties of this class, an employee is regularly required to use written
and oral communication skills; read and interpret data, information and documents; analyze and solve
problems; use math and mathematical reasoning; learn and apply new skills and information; perform highly
detailed work on multiple, concurrent tasks; and interact with District managers, officials of other governmental
agencies, community and professional groups, staff and other organizations.

Safety: Follows proper safety practices at all times.

Travel: On occasion, the incumbent in this position may be required to attend hearings, workshops, meetings,
and seminars.

Other: Position subject to extended work hours and attend evening meetings.

Finance Committee Meeting
November 8, 2018 Page 67 of 67 4





